
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
SUMMER VILLAGE OF BIRCHCLIFF 

 JUNE 15, 2023 @ 9:00 A.M. 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. AGENDA - additions/deletions
- adoption

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  -    Regular Meeting Minutes, May 18, 2023
- Municipal Planning Commission, May 18, 2023
- Subdivision and Development Appeal Board,

May 24, 2023

D. INFORMATION ITEMS

1) Accounts Payable Update
2) Public Works Report
3) Development Update
4) CAO Report

E. TABLED ITEMS

1) Finance

a) Reserves Policy

2) Council & Legislation

a) Fire and Burning Bylaw

F. REQUESTS FOR DECISION

1) Council & Legislation

a) Committee Members Remuneration Policy
b) Community Pier Policy

2) Planning & Development

a) Land Use Bylaw Amendments



 
 
 

 
 

G. COUNCIL REPORT 
 

1)   Council Reports 
 

a) Roger Dufresne 
b) Ann Zacharias 
c) Frank Tirpak 

 
2)  Committee Reports 

 
a) Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 

• Town of Sylvan Lake Library Board 
• Parkland Regional Library Board 

 
3) Upcoming Meetings 
 

a) Next Council Meeting – July 20, 2023 
b) Organizational Meeting – July 20, 2023 

 
 

 

H. ADJOURNMENT 



Summer Village of Birchcliff 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 18, 2023 

1 | P a g e

Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting of the Summer Village of Birchcliff, 
Province of Alberta, held May 18, 2023, in the Summer Villages on Sylvan Lake 
Administration Office at Sylvan Lake, Alberta. 

IN ATTENDANCE    Mayor: Roger Dufresne 
 Deputy Mayor: Ann Zacharias 
 Councillor:  Frank Tirpak  
CAO:  Tanner Evans 
Public Works Manager: Owen Olynyk 

 Development Officer: Kara Hubbard  
 Recording Secretary: Teri Musseau 

CALL TO ORDER   The Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Mayor Dufresne. 

AGENDA  

BCC-23-063        MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that the agenda be adopted as amended: 

D.2.  Community Piers discussion with Public Works Report
CARRIED 

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

BCC-23-064 MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that the minutes of the regular meeting of 
Council held on April 20, 2023, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

1) Accounts Payable
2) Public Works Report

BCC-23-065 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council purchase the H2S monitor 
conditionally on approval of the Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater 
Commission, with funds to come from the Sewer Capital Reserve. 

CARRIED 

3) Development Update
4) CAO Report

BCC-23-066 MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that Council accept the information items as 
presented. 

CARRIED 

TABLED ITEMS 

PUBLIC WORKS 

Bylaw #245-23  Traffic Bylaw 
BCC-23-067   Moved by Councillor Tirpak that Council give 2nd  reading to the Traffic Bylaw 

#245-23 as amended. 
CARRIED 

BCC-23-068  Moved by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council give 3rd and final reading to 
the Traffic Bylaw #245-23 as amended. 

CARRIED 

C-1

Page 1 of 3



  Summer Village of Birchcliff 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 18, 2023 
  

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Council break at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Council reconvened at 10:40 a.m. 
 
 
REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
COUNCIL & LEGISLATION 
 
   Association of Summer Villages of Alberta Conference 
BCC-23-069   MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that Mayor Dufresne attend the ASVA Annual 

Conference October 19th & 20th at the Royal Hotel West in Edmonton. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
  Association of Summer Villages of Alberta Silent Auction 
BCC-23-070   MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council accept the request from the 

Association of Summer Villages of Alberta for a donation to the silent auction 
at their annual conference as information.   

     CARRIED 
 
 
Bylaw #247-23 Fire and Burning Bylaw 
BCC-23-071    MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council give 1st reading to the Fire 

and Burning Bylaw #247-23 as amended. 
     CARRIED 
 
     
PUBLIC WORKS 
 
   Administration Building Improvements 
BCC-23-072  MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that Council approve the increase to the capital 

budget for the Administrative Building improvements by $3,096.00. 
     CARRIED 
 
      
  Fleet Replacement Policy 
BCC-23-073  MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council approve the Fleet 

Replacement Policy as presented. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
 
   Land Use Bylaw Amendments 
BCC-23-074  MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that Council approve the proposed 

amendments as discussed and Administration draft a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment Bylaw. 

     CARRIED 
 
 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
  Deputy Mayor Zacharias  

• Sylvan Lake Regional Water and Wastewater Commission 
• Smile Cookie Day   

    
   Councillor Tirpak 

• No reports  

C-1

Page 2 of 3



  Summer Village of Birchcliff 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 18, 2023 
  

 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
 Mayor Dufresne 

• Joint Services Committee 
• OS8 walk through with Public Works 
• Climate Action Plan 

     
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

                                     Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 
• Parkland Regional Library Board 

 
BCC-23-075  MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council accept the Council and 

Committee items as information. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
BCC-23-076    MOVED by Mayor Dufresne that the next meeting of Council be held June 

15, 2023, at 9:00 a.m.  
    CARRIED 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
BCC-23-077   MOVED by Mayor Dufresne that being the agenda matters have been 

concluded, the meeting adjourned at 11:39 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

   __________________________________ 
                             ROGER DUFRESNE, MAYOR 

 
 

 
   __________________________________ 

                                                                  TANNER EVANS, CAO 

C-1

Page 3 of 3



Summer Village of Birchcliff 
May 18, 2023 

Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 

Initials 

Minutes of a Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the Summer Village 
of Birchcliff, Province of Alberta, held May 18, 2023, at the Summer Villages 
on Sylvan Lake Administration Office in Sylvan Lake, Alberta. 

PRESENT:  Chair:  Ann Zacharias  
 Councillor:  Frank Tirpak   
 Member at Large: Jonathan Paulgaard via zoom 
 CAO:  Tanner Evans     
 Development Officer: Kara Hubbard  

    Recording Secretary: Teri Musseau   
    Applicant(s):  Jodi Neish 

Ryan Neish 

CALL TO ORDER   Chair Zacharias called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

AGENDA: 

MPC-23- 004  Moved by Councillor Tirpak that the agenda be approved as presented. 
CARRIED 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

1. 71 Birchcliff Road

Application for landscaping revisions/mechanized excavation on the 
escarpment at 71 Birchcliff Road (Lot 2, Block 4, Plan 4486AX) in the 
Summer Village of Birchcliff.   

Kara Hubbard and applicants left the meeting at 1:36  p.m. 

MPC-23-005 Moved by Jonathan Paulgaard that the Municipal Planning Commission 
deny the application for landscaping revisions/mechanized excavation on 
the escarpment at 71 Birchcliff Road for the following reasons: 

• Birchcliff's Land Use Bylaw part 3, section 4.1, subsection 4(5) states
that the escarpment or slope areas with a gradient of fifteen (15)
percent or greater shall be retained in their natural state.

• Section 6.3.4 of Birchcliff's Municipal Development Plan states that
while recognizing that remedial actions may be necessary from time to
time, the Summer Village still strongly desires that banks abutting the
shoreline remain as natural as possible to retain natural ecosystems.
The proposed development does not reflect an effort to keep the
escarpment area natural.

• The fact that the proposal shows the entire parcel coverage below the
50% threshold is not relevant in this situation as it does not address
the need for the escarpment to remain as natural as possible.  It was
clear in the initial approval that remedial actions were necessary as
shown in the geotechnical report, which is why retaining walls were
approved.  However, the rest of the proposed development is not
considered to be natural.  The lands will have to return to what was
originally approved, which is:

C-2

Page 1 of 2



 Summer Village of Birchcliff 
 May 18, 2023 

 Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
  

 
 

Initials 
 
 
 

 
 

 

o winter storage area labeled as "tier 1 (lower) is to be entirely a 
no-mow zone, consisting of native grasses and shrubbery with 
no sandy area permitted, as indicated on the originally 
approved drawings.  A no-mow zone is a vegetative buffer strip 
above the high-water mark on the shoreline and allows native 
plants to seed and re-establish.  

o Areas labeled on this application as "tier 1” (upper), and "tier 2", 
along with the entire yard above the highest retaining wall are 
to be entirely grass. Paving stones, rocks, gravel, and any other 
material must be removed prior to filling with topsoil and 
sodding.  Nothing other than grass, trees, shrubs, or plants 
shall remain.  The stairs between each tier may remain but any 
walkway or paving stones connecting them on top of each tier 
must be removed and replaced by grass.  The firepit area within 
what is labeled "tier 2" must be removed entirely with the 
sunken area backfilled to match the rest of tier 2 and covered in 
grass.  

o The firepit area originally approved on the scaled drawing 
appears to be 1.5m and can remain at that size on either tier.  

o The drawings submitted for this application seem to show the 
lowest retaining wall encroaching past the property line, which 
was not shown on the originally approved drawing.  Please 
ensure that all development takes place within your property 
lines.  

• Should Superior Safety Codes require a railing, the proposed design 
of the railing must be submitted to the Municipal Planning 
Commission for approval prior to installation.  

                                                              CARRIED 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  

 
MPC-23-006 Moved by Chair Zacharias that the Municipal Planning Commission meeting 

be adjourned at 2:52 p.m.  
     CARRIED   
  
 
 

    
___________________________ 

ANN ZACHARIAS, CHAIR 
      
 
 

                   
TANNER EVANS, CAO 

C-2

Page 2 of 2



PRESENT 

CALL TO ORDER 

PURPOSE OF 
HEARING 

PRELIMINARY 
MATTER 

ADJOURNMENT 

SUMMER VILLAGE OF BIRCHCLIFF 
SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT APPEAL BOARD 

MAY 24, 2023 
RECORD OF HEARING AND DECISION 

   Chair:        Roger Dufresne 
Member-at-large:  Thom Jewell via phone   
 Member at Large:  Karen McCaffery via zoom 
CAO:  Tanner Evans 
Development Officer:        Kara Kashuba 
Recording Secretary:      Teri Musseau 
Appellant Counsel:        Roberto Noce, K.C. 
Summer Village Counsel:          Alifeyah Gulamhusein 

Chair Dufresne called the hearing to order at 10:00 a.m.  

The purpose of this hearing is to hear an appeal received from 
Roberto Noce, K.C., on behalf of Jesse and Joanne Bjornson on 
April 28, 2023, appealing the denial of a development permit by 
the Municipal Planning Commission on April 6, 2023, for a “U”-
shaped structure and stairs on the escarpment for the property 
located at 83 Birchcliff Road, Lots 4 & 5, Block 3, Plan 4486AX, 
in the Summer Village of Birchcliff. 

A request was received from Alifeyah Gulamhusein, Counsel for 
the Summer Village of Birchcliff, for an adjournment due to a 
scheduling conflict since she was unable to attend the hearing in 
person.  All parties, including the board members, were 
contacted prior to the hearing, and agreed to an adjournment 
date of June 26th @ 10:00 a.m. 

Chair Dufresne adjourned the hearing at 10:03 a.m. until 
Monday, June 26th at 10:00 a.m.  All submissions for inclusion in 
the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board agenda 
package must be received by the Secretary no later than the end 
of the business day on June 15th, 2023. 

Dated at the Town of Sylvan Lake this 24th day of May 2023. 

__________________________ 
Roger Dufresne 

Chairman 
Summer Village of Birchcliff 

Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 

C-3

Page 1 of 1



Summer Village of Birchcliff 

Administration and Finance 

June 15, 2023 

Information Item  

Agenda Item: Accounts Payable Update

Background: 
Total payables processed and presented to Council  $   26,601.69 
The following list identifies any payments over $3,000: 

1. Summer Village of Norglenwold       $     17,106.63 
a. April 2023 Muni Specific Costs
b. April 2023 Shared Costs

Council Expense Claims Report:

May 2023 
 Roger Dufresne $      408.30 
 Ann Zacharais $      410.40 
 Frank Tirpak $      410.40 

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c): The chief administrative officer advised and informs the council on 
the operations and affairs of the municipality.  

D-1

Page 1 of 6



Bank Code - MAIN - General Bank

Invoice #

COMPUTER CHEQUE

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account

1170 2023-05-31 Idland, Gary & Teresa
1316 461-000-520 - Completions Depo Completions Deposit Refund 500.00500.00

1171 2023-05-31 Ace Line Locating Ltd.
5672 242-000-255 - Maintenance Prog Line Locating 480.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 504.0024.00
5703 242-000-255 - Maintenance Prog Line Locating 1,080.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 1,134.0054.00
1,638.00Payment Total:

1172 2023-05-31 Clarence, Simon
135081 461-000-520 - Completions Depo Completions Deposit Refund 1,000.001,000.00

1173 2023-05-31 Empringham Disposal Corp
46973 243-000-200 - Contracted Servic Apr 2023 Bi Weekly Collecti 465.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 488.2523.25

1174 2023-05-31 Roaddata Services Ltd
00081439 232-000-250 - Road Maintenanc Road Permits 16.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 16.800.80

1175 2023-05-31 Rugged West Maintenance Inc.
1324 274-000-200 - Buoy Program Buoy Installation 1,888.60

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 1,983.0394.43
1326 232-000-200 - Green Space Pro Mowing and Trimming - May 550.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 577.5027.50
2,560.53Payment Total:

1176 2023-05-31 Sylvan Lake Regional
1801 242-000-260 - Useage Fees Apr 2023 WW Services 2,520.482,520.48

1177 2023-05-31 Triangle Construction Inc
1703 232-000-200 - Green Space Pro Tree Assessments in Blocks 600.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 630.0030.00

9,354.06Total Computer Cheque:

Invoice #

EFT

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
256 2023-04-30 Summer Villages of Norglenwold

20230056 226-000-200 - Enforcement Brownlee Law-Enforcement 72.68
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Essc-Bylaw Truck W 2.59
297-213-840 - Project MSI-Admi Accelerated -Land Title Plan 153.82
297-213-840 - Project MSI-Admi Rite-Way Fencing-Fencing A 1,636.65
226-000-200 - Enforcement UFA-March Bylaw Fuel 126.05
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Intercon Messaging 7.35
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Amazon-Router for 150.00
226-000-200 - Enforcement Fountain Tire-Tire Change O 14.99
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-CO-OP-Bylaw Truc 2.60
226-000-200 - Enforcement UFA-Apr Bylaw Fuel 2,254.4187.68

2023-00060 212-100-110 - Salaries Salaries 10,607.97
212-100-130 - Training Training 928.88
212-100-140 - Benefits Shared Benefits 394.84
212-100-210 - Travel & Subsiste Travel & Subsistence 135.13

Summer Village of Birchcliff
List of Accounts for Approval (Detailed)Date Printed

2023-06-08  1:52 PM Page 1Batch:  2023-00028 to 2023-00030

D-1

Page 2 of 6



Invoice #

EFT

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
212-100-211 - WCB WCB 84.22
212-100-266 - PW Fleet PW Fleet 22.85
212-200-215 - Postage/Freight/C Postage/Freight 2.61
212-200-500 - Printing Costs Printing Costs 83.68
212-200-510 - Office Supplies Office Supplies 125.51
212-300-217 - Phone/Fax/Interne Shared Phone/Fax 123.66
212-300-540 - Utilities Utilities 279.80
212-300-250 - Facility Improvem Facilitiy Improvements 0.00
212-300-255 - Facility Maintenan Facility Maint. 12.04
212-300-263 - Condominium Co Condominium 0.00
212-300-240 - Computer Softwa Computer Software 1,097.06
212-300-242 - IT Equipment IT Equipment 415.72
212-300-265 - Equipment Mainte Equip Maintenance 41.14
212-300-270 - Equipment Renta Equip Rental 51.67
212-300-510 - Other Contingenc Contingency 0.00
212-300-530 - Building Insurance Building Insurance 14,852.22445.44

17,106.63Payment Total:
17,106.63Total Other:

Invoice #

OTHER

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
3470 2023-05-31 Receiver General/ OTH

CP4-23 312-000-262 - CRA Remuneratio CPP April's  2023 Remunera 129.30129.30

3487 2023-05-31 Receiver General/ OTH
CP5-23 312-000-262 - CRA Remuneratio May Remuneration CPP 11.7011.70

141.00Total Other:

26,601.69Total MAIN:

Summer Village of Birchcliff
List of Accounts for Approval (Detailed)Date Printed

2023-06-08  1:52 PM Page 2Batch:  2023-00028 to 2023-00030

D-1

Page 3 of 6



D-1

Page 4 of 6



D-1

Page 5 of 6



D-1

Page 6 of 6



June 8, 23 

Summer Village of  Birchcliff 

June 15, 2023 

Public Works 

Information Item 

Agenda Item: Public Works Report 

Background: 
The following will provide Council with an update on Public Works activites and 
initiatives: 

- Public Works has had a site visit with Parkland Geo to look at options of bank
stabilization of OS19 & OS16 without the need of doing invasive core sampling or
groundwater monitoring.
-Spring yard waste bins have been removed for the season.
-Hazardous and decadent tree assessment has been completed, approximately
$90,000 worth of work has been identified.
-Collection cart production should be completed on June 19th and will take
approximately 5-7 days to be shipped to our waste management contractor to
circulate to all the Summer Villages.

Options for Consideration: 

1) That Council accepts this report as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 

That Council accept this report as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c) "advises and informs the council on the operation and affairs of the 
municipality" 

D-2

Page 1 of 1



June 5, 2023 

Summer Village of Birchcliff 

June 15, 2023 

Planning and Development 

Information Item 

Agenda Item: Development Update 

Background: 
Development Permit Update: 
Currently there are 90 development permits issued in the Summer Villages (22 in 
Birchcliff, 2 in Half Moon Bay, 19 in Jarvis Bay, 21 in Norglenwold, and 26 in 
Sunbreaker Cove). 

Current Developments: 

1. 145 Birchcliff Road  Demo & Dwelling Issued in 2018 
(landscaping incomplete)

2. 355 Birchcliff Road Addition & Det. Garage Issued in 2020 
(site inspection complete, outstanding condition) 

3. 87 Birchcliff Road  Dwelling Issued in 2020 
(final inspection complete – require RPR)  

4. 363 Birchcliff Road Escarpment Ret. Walls Issued in 2021 
(Completion of landscaping taking place) 

5. 71 Birchcliff Road Escarpment Ret. Walls Issued in 2021 
(site inspection complete, conditions outstanding) 

6. 14 Sunnyside Cabin  Demo & Dwelling Issued in 2021 
(outstanding conditions) 

7. 83 Birchcliff Road Dwelling Issued in 2021 
8. 94 Birchcliff Lane Dwelling Issued in 2021 

(to be complete late spring/early summer) 
9. 59 Birchcliff Road  Driveway Issued in 2021 

(completion of landscaping taking place) 
10. 83 Birchcliff Road  Lakeside Stairs Issued in 2021 
11. 363 Birchcliff Road  Dwelling Issued in 2021 

(site inspection req. Landscaping taking place) 
12. 71 Birchcliff Road Dwelling Issued in 2021 
13. 187 Birchcliff Road Demolition & Dwelling Issued in 2022 
14. 163 Birchcliff Road Dwelling Addition  Issued in 2022 
15. 37 Sunnyside Cabin Demolition & Dwelling Issued in 2022 
16. 409 Birchcliff Road Lakeside Stairs Issued in 2022 
17. Western RV#16 Deck  Issued in 2022 
18. 529 Birch Close Dwelling Issued in 2022 
19. 425 Birchcliff Road Dwelling Issued in 2022 

D-3

Page 1 of 2



June 5, 2023 

20. 280 Birchcliff Road     Dwelling   Issued in 2022 
21. 533 Birch Close  Dwelling Addition  Issued in 2022 
22. 159 Birchcliff Road  Dwelling   Issued in 2022 

 
Closed Developments since last meeting: 
 

1. 337 Birchcliff Road  Dwelling, Gar & Guest H Issued in 2019 
2. 137 Birchcliff Road  Driveway   Issued in 2020 
3. 81 Sunnyside Cabin Dwelling Addition & Deck Issued in 2022 

 
Open Administrative Files: 
 

1. 71 Birchcliff Road 
2. 315 Birchcliff Road 
3. 319 Birchcliff Road 
4. 317 Birchcliff Road 
5. 145 Birchcliff Road 
6. 83 Birchcliff Road 
7. 14 Sunnyside Cabin 
8. 367 Birchcliff Road 
9. 309 Birchcliff Road 
10. Sunnyside Cabin 95-97 
11. 79 Birchcliff Road 

 
Permit Summary: 

2022 Jan.-Dec.: 
13 development permits. Estimated project cost $4,069,000.00. 

2021 Jan.-Dec.: 
21 development permits. Estimated project cost $4,926,500.00. 

 
Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information.  
 
Authorities: 
Land Use Bylaw #170/13.  

D-3

Page 2 of 2



March 9, 2023 

Summer Village of Birchcliff 

June 15, 2023 

Information  

Agenda Item: CAO Report 

Background: 
- Data from the speed signs has been collected in Birchcliff. This data has

been collected between December 2022 to May 2023. Unfortunately the
data was corrupted from the sign located at the entrance near range road
14. The data we collected from the second location showed a number of
things:
1. The majority of vehicles travel between 41-70 kmph
2. 19 instances were tracked where vehicles were traveling over 100

kmph, with the fastest being 128 kmph
3. 4,357 instances were tracked where vehicles were going over 65 kmph

- This data was sent to S/Sgt. Jay Peden for comment. He has noted that
he is looking to speak to provincial traffic services and will follow up with
an update/recommendation and that “the data speaks volumes”.

- Administration has spoken to 3 real estate agents regarding selling fees
should Council decide to move forward with selling any lands.

Options for Consideration: 
Council to discuss and accept as information. 

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council accept as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c) “advises and informs the council on the operation and affairs of the 
municipality”. 

D-4

Page 1 of 2



E-2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council 
JSC 
HRSC 
JSO 

 
 
 

JANUARY 
CAO Goal Setting 
CAO Goal Setting 
CAO merit increase 

FEBRUARY 
Year End Financial 
Q4 Review 
Year End Financial 

MARCH 
Financial Audit Review 

APRIL 
Q1 Review 
Adopt Mill Rate 
Q1 Financial Review 

MAY JUNE JULY 
Q2 Review 
Organizational Meeting 
Q2 Review 
Organizational Meeting 

AUGUST 

SEPTEMBER 
Strategic Planning 
CAO Review 

OCTOBER 
Q3 Review 
Q3 Review 
Budget Discussion 
CAO Review & Increase 
Consolidate CAO Review 

NOVEMBER 
Adopt JSC Budget 
SV Budget Discussion 

DECEMBER 
Adopt Municipal 
Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

D-4

Page 2 of 2



Summer Village of  Birchcliff 

June 15, 2022 

Finance 

Request for Decision  

Agenda Item: Reserves Policy 

Background: 
In April, Administration brought forward a Reserves Policy for Council’s 
consideration.  Council reviewed the policy and provided suggested 
amendments.  Administration has amended the policy and is bringing it back for 
Council’s consideration. 

Options for Consideration: 
1) Council discuss and adopt the Reserves Policy.
2) Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1) That Council discuss and adopt the Reserves Policy.

Authorities: 
Municipal Government Act, Section 153 
Councillors have the following duties: 
(b) to participate generally in developing and evaluating the policies and

programs of the municipality.

E-1-A

Page 1 of 9



1 
 

 

Policy Title 

Reserve Policy 
Date: 

 
Resolution No. 

 

 
POLICY STATEMENT: 

1. Birchcliff is sustainable only if both its capital infrastructure assets and its 
financial assets can be maintained over the long term. It is the policy of the 
Summer Village of Birchcliff to establish reserve funds to ensure the long-term 
financial stability and flexibility of the Summer Village of Birchcliff, to position it to 
respond to varying economic conditions and changes affecting the Village’s 
financial position, and to ensure the organization has the ability to continuously 
carry out its responsibilities. 

PURPOSE: 
2. The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, limits, and conditions 

applicable to the segregation of the Summer Village of Birchcliff’s accumulated 
surplus, referred to as restricted surpluses in its audited financial statements, into 
reserves funds. The reserves practices will ensure a favourable and sustainable 
financial position while supporting the ability to meet current and future operating 
and infrastructure requirements by maintaining reserves funds sufficient to 
achieve the following: 

 
a) The organization has sufficient working capital so that it is able to sustain 

operations through delays in receipt of payments of committed funding and to 
accept reimbursable contracts and grants without jeopardizing ongoing 
operations; 

 
b) The organization has sufficient resources to fund the acquisition or 

construction of new capital assets and the replacement and rehabilitation of 
major capital infrastructure assets, as required and as identified in the Summer 
Village of Birchcliff’s Strategic, Capital, and Long-Term Financial Strategy 
Plans; 

 
c) Public confidence in the long-term sustainability of the organization is 

promoted by preventing cash flow crises that can diminish its reputation and 
force its leaders to make expensive short term, crisis-based decisions; 

 
d) The organization has sufficient resources to fund budgeted contingency 

amounts for unpredictable revenues, volatile expenditures, and unanticipated 
opportunities and/ or challenges; 

E-1-A

Page 2 of 9



2 
 

 
e) To contribute favourably to the liquidity position of the organization; 
 
f) The organization meets the objectives of the Summer Village of Birchcliff’s 5 

Year Capital Plan and the Summer Village’s Strategic Plan. 
 
 

DEFINITIONS 

3. "Capital reserves" means the portion of unrestricted net assets that the Village 
maintains, or that Council has designated (or "restricted") for use in maintaining 
an adequate reserve to acquire or construct new capital assets and replace and 
rehabilitate major capital infrastructure assets as required, and as identified in the 
Summer Village of Birchcliff’s Strategic, Capital, and Long-Term Financial 
Strategy Plans. 
 

4. "Dedicated reserves" means the portion of unrestricted net assets that the 
Summer Village has collected from developers to fund specific initiatives and/ or 
projects. These funds may not be used for any other purpose than what they 
were collected for. 

 
5. "Depreciation" means the amortization amount of fixed assets, such as buildings 

and equipment, in order to allocate the cost over its useful life. It is a process of 
cost allocation and not valuation. Depreciation increases expenses but does not 
reduce cash. 
 

6. “General Operating reserve” means the portion of unrestricted net assets that the 
Summer Village maintains, or that Council has designated to ensure the total 
amount of actual dollars in our bank account at any given time stays at a targeted 
balance so that cash flow is not interrupted and invoices can be paid on time.  
 

7. "Operating expenses" means the annual expenditures to fund regular operations 
and for greater certainty, do not include transfers from operating to fund capital 
expenditures, transfers to reserves, internal transfers between departments, and 
funds expended on non-tangible capital asset. 
 

8. "Operating reserves" means the portion of unrestricted net assets that the 
Summer Village maintains, or that Council has designated (or "restricted") for use 
in: 

 
a) emergencies to sustain financial operations for a reasonable period in 

the event of significant and unanticipated, unbudgeted increases in 
operating expenses and/or losses in operating revenues, and/ or 
 

E-1-A

Page 3 of 9



3 
 

b) funding budgeted contingencies for non-emergent but unpredictable 
revenues, volatile expenditures, and unanticipated opportunities and/ 
or challenges, and/ or 

 
c) funding for the mitigation of tax rate increases. 
 

9. “Program specific reserves” means the portion of unrestricted net assets that the 
Summer Village maintains, or that Council has designated (or “restricted”) for use 
in specific initiatives or programs for which the funds are collected. 
 

10. “Restricted Surplus” means funds set aside by a municipality for a specific future 
project, or as a contingency for excess costs in a specific area. Restricted 
Reserves funds should not be perceived as a measure of a municipality’s wealth, 
as they may be the product of many years of saving and advance planning to 
fund the purchase or construction of a major asset, or to carry out projects 
identified in a municipality’s long range capital plan. 
 

11. “Unrestricted Surplus” means an emergency savings account held by a 
municipality to use for unexpected expenses incurred at a later date. Funds from 
an unrestricted reserve could be used to repair or replace an asset that fails 
unexpectedly, or simply to give council flexibility to allocate funds to future 
projects as needs arise, per Council approval.  
 

GENERAL GUIDELINES 

12. All reserve transfers, re-designations, revisions, and new account requests must 
be approved by Council. Approvals may be in the form of: 
 

a) The annual operating or capital budget approval; 
 

b) A carryover project that was contained in an approved operating or capital 
budget; or  
 

c) A Council resolution.  
13. Draws from reserves must not exceed the fund balance unless it can be 

demonstrated to Council that future sources of revenue will provide adequate 
funding to return the fund to a positive balance. 
 

14. All operating and capital reserve funds must be fully described and include a 
purpose, source of funding, minimum level, optimum or target level, and the 
rational used to establish the levels. 
 

15. Before creating a new reserve fund, the option of adding an incremental 
contribution to an existing fund of a like nature will be considered. 
 

E-1-A

Page 4 of 9



4 
 

16. The prescribed fund limits will be reviewed by Council at least once each term of 
office. 
 

17. The Village will maintain reserve funds in accordance with Schedule A. 
 

18. Program specific reserve funds are intended to accumulate the money collected 
for specific initiatives or programs stipulated at the time of collection. 

MANAGEMENT OF THE RESERVE POLICY 

19. Reserve funds will be drawn down only under circumstances specific to the 
individual reserve fund. 
 

20. For reporting purposes, the reserve funds will be listed separately in the “notes” 
section of the Village’s financial statements. 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

21. Only Council can approve the drawing down of a fund for operating or capital 
purposes. 
 

22. The Finance Committee will review the reserves policies at least every term of 
Council, or sooner if conditions warrant, and provide recommendations for 
Council approval.  

20. Administration will provide Council with: 

a) Actual year end reserve fund balances after Audited Financial Statements are 
complete. 

VISION ALIGNMENT 

21. The Summer Village of Birchcliff’s services and programs respond to the 
aspirations of its residents and visitors and are delivered in an effective, 
innovative, and fiscally responsible manner.  

POLICY REVIEW 

22. This policy will be reviewed by Council on or before July 31, 2025. 

 

RELATED DOCUMENTS 

23. Municipal Government Act 
24. Strategic Plan 

E-1-A

Page 5 of 9



5 
 

25. Summer Village of Birchcliff’s 5 Year Capital Plan 
 

ATTACHMENT 

26. Reserves Policy – Schedule A 
 

AUTHORIZATION 

 

_______________________________   _________________________ 
            Signature of CAO        Date 
 
 
_______________________________   _________________________ 
            Signature of Mayor        Date 
 
 
 
Repeal/Revision History 
 
Action Date Council 

Motion 
Notes 

    
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 
 
 

E-1-A

Page 6 of 9



6 
 

Reserve Purpose Funding 
Source (s) 

Minimum $ 
Level 

Target/Optimum 
$ Level 

Rationale Use to Establish Levels 

General 
Operating 
Reserve 
 

Subject to multi-
year budgeting 
being approved 
by Council or 
required by 
provincial 
legislation, to 
fund unexpected 
or emergent 
operating 
demands that 
arise as a natural 
consequence of 
multi-year 
budgeting and or 
interim budgets 
and to ensure 
cash flow is not 
interrupted. 

Transfers from 
annual 
operating 
surpluses, 
budgeted 
transfers from 
municipal 
property tax 
revenue and 
any other one-
time transfers 
to boost 
reserve levels. 

1/3 of previous year’s 
operating budget 

$200,000 Historical and current years budgets. 
  
MGA Section 242(1) Each council must adopt an operating 
budget for each calendar year by January 1 of that calendar 
year. 
 
(2) A Council may adopt an interim operating budget for part of 
a calendar year. 
 

Road Reserve 
Capital 

To fund Municipal 
Road 
rehabilitation and 
replacement. 

Transfers from 
annual 
operating 
surpluses, 
budgeted 
transfers from 
municipal 
property tax 
revenue and 
any other one-
time transfers 
to boost 
reserve levels. 

Adequate to fund 
rehabilitation and 
replacement of 
Municipal Roads 
identified as 
Infrastructure Reserve 
funded in the capital 
planning summary and 
unanticipated capital 
expenditures within the 
next 5 
 years. 
Current Council Target: 
$250,000 Minimum 
 

Adequate to fund 
rehabilitation and 
replacement of 
Municipal Roads 
identified as 
Infrastructure Reserve 
funded in the capital 
planning summary and 
unanticipated capital 
expenditures within the 
next 10 years. 
 
$500,000? 

Fund balances based upon an analysis of the needs of the 
Municipality, taking into consideration long term financial 
strategies, asset management plans, and annual depreciation 
amounts.  

Municipal 
Infrastructure 
Reserve 

To fund new 
capital projects or 
for capital 
expenditures 
necessary.  

Transfers from 
annual 
operating 
surpluses, 
property tax 
revenue, 
unspent annual 

Adequate to fund new 
capital projects 
identified as reserve 
funded in the long term 
financial strategy and 
capital planning 
summary and 

Adequate to fund 
rehabilitation and 
replacement capital 
projects identified as 
reserve funded in the 
long term financial 
strategy and capital 

Fund balances based upon an analysis of the needs of the 
municipality, taking into consideration long term financial 
strategies, asset management plans, and annual depreciation 
amounts. 

E-1-A

Page 7 of 9



7 
 

contributions to 
capital from 
operations, and 
one time 
transfers to 
boost reserve 
levels. 

unanticipated capital 
expenditures within the 
next 5 years. 

planning summary and 
unanticipated capital 
expenditures within the 
next 10 years. 

Wastewater 
Capital 
Reserve Sewer 
Reserve 

To fund capital 
projects and 
emergency 
repairs related to 
the wastewater 
system 

1- net surplus 
from annual 
operations of 
the Utility 
department. 
2-  transfers 
from annual 
operating 
budgeted from 
municipal 
property tax 
revenue and 
any one-time 
transfers to 
boost reserve 
levels.  
 

$300,000 $300,000 Wastewater Infrastructure is new, so it will be many years 
before replacement is required.  However, emergency repairs 
may be necessary.  
 

Completions 
Deposit 
Reserve 
Dedicated 
 

Unrestricted net 
assets that the 
Summer Village 
has collected 
from developers 
to fund specific 
initiatives and/ or 
projects. 

Funds are 
collected as 
part of the 
Development 
Permit process 
and are 
refunded upon 
completion of 
all permit 
requirements. 

None None None – Must be refunded upon completion of requirements. 

IT Reserve To fund new IT 
projects 
expenditures 
necessary  

Transfers from 
annual 
operating 
budgeted from 
municipal 
property tax 
revenue 

$5,000 $10,000 Fund balances based upon an analysis of the needs of the 
municipality. 

E-1-A

Page 8 of 9



8 
 

Fleet 
Replacement 
Reserve 

To fund Fleet 
Replacement 
purchases necessary.   

1- net surplus from 
annual operations of 
the Utility 
department. 
2-  transfers from 
annual operating 
budgeted from 
municipal property 
tax revenue and any 
one-time transfers to 
boost reserve levels.  
 

$25,000  $50,000 Fund balances based upon an analysis of the 
needs of the municipality, taking into consideration 
long term financial strategies, asset management 
plans, and annual depreciation amounts. 

Open Spaces 
Environmental 
Reserve/ 
Sustainability  

To fund capital 
projects to finance 
and promote open 
spaces, energy 
efficiency  and 
climate adaptation. 

Transfers from 
annual operating 
surpluses, budgeted 
transfers from 
municipal property 
tax revenue and any 
other one-time 
transfers to boost 
reserve levels. 

$100,000 $100,000 Fund balances based upon an analysis of the 
needs of the Municipality, taking into consideration 
long term financial strategies, 

 
Mill Rate Stabilization To reduce any potential 

large jumps to the mill 
rate needed by a sharp 
increase to operational 
needs 

Transfers from annual 
operating surpluses, 
budgeted transfers from 
municipal property tax 
revenue and any other 
one-time transfers to 
boost reserve levels. 

2% of previous year’s 
budget 

 Fund balances up on an 
analysis of the needs of 
the Municipality. 

 
 
 
 
 

E-1-A

Page 9 of 9



Summer Village of Birchcliff 

June 15, 2022 

Council & Legislation 

Request for Decision  

Agenda Item: Fire and Burning Bylaw 

Background: 
With the addition of our Bylaw Enforcement Officer, Administration has been 
reviewing bylaws to ensure they are enforceable and cohesive between the 5 
Summer Villages.   

At the May Council meeting, Council gave 1st reading to the Fire and Burning 
Bylaw.  2nd and 3rd readings were not given to allow time for resident comments.  
Administration has not received any comments on the proposed bylaw. 

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council to discuss and give 2nd and 3rd readings to the Fire and Burning

Bylaw either as presented or amended.
2. Council table for amendments or further consideration.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1. Council give 2nd reading to the Fire and Burning Bylaw #247-23.
2. Council give 3rd and final reading to the Fire and Burning Bylaw #247-23.

Authorities: 
Municipal Government Act, Section 7 
A Council may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the following 
matters: 

(a) the safety, health and welfare of people and the protection of people and
property.

E-2-A

Page 1 of 7



 
 

SUMMER VILLAGE OF BIRCHCLIFF 
BURNING AND FIRE PIT BYLAW 

BYLAW 247-23 
 
A bylaw of the Summer Village of Birchcliff, in the Province of Alberta, for the 
purpose of regulating burning. 

 
WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26 as amended of the 
Province of Alberta provides that a Municipal Council may by Bylaw provide for 
safety, health and welfare of people and the protection of people and property; 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Summer Village of Birchcliff deems it expedient and in 
the public’s interest to pass a bylaw to regulate and enforce burning within the 
Summer Village of Birchcliff; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Summer Village of Birchcliff duly 
assembled enacts as follows: 
 
 
1. SHORT TITLE 
 
1.1 This Bylaw shall be cited as “Burning and Fire Pit Bylaw.” 
 
 
2. DEFINITIONS 
 
2.1 In this Bylaw, including this section, unless the context otherwise requires: 
 
 a) “Act” means the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26 of 

the Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000 as amended, and any 
amendment or substitutes thereof. 

 
b) “Building Waste” means any clean scrap wood produced in the 

process of constructing, altering, or repairing a building. 
 
c) “Consumer Fireworks” means consumer fireworks classified as 

such under the Explosives Regulations, 2013, as amended from time 
to time, including outdoor, low hazard, consumer fireworks, such as 
fireworks showers, fountains, golden rain, lawn lights, pin wheels, 
roman candles, volcanoes, and sparklers. 

  
d)  “Council” means the Municipal Council of the Summer Village of 

Birchcliff. 
 
e) “Director of Disaster Services” means the person appointed by the 

Summer Village to that position and includes any person appointed by 
the Director of Disaster Services to act as such Director’s delegate for 
the purposes of this Bylaw. 

 
f) “Discharge” means to fire, ignite, explode, or set-off or cause to be 

fired, ignited, exploded or set-off. 
 
g)  “Extinguish” means to apply something to make a fire stop burning, 

such as but not limited to, water, sand, or dirt until the hissing sound 
of the embers dies out entirely. 

 
h) “Fire Ban” means a prohibition on all burning, including the discharge 

of all fireworks within the summer village. 
 

E-2-A

Page 2 of 7



i) “Fire Department” means any responding Fire Department. 
 
j) “Fire Pit” includes a permanently affixed outdoor fire receptacle. 
 
k)  “Fireworks” means a device containing gunpowder and other 

combustible chemicals that causes a spectacular explosion when 
ignited, used typically for display or in celebrations. 

  
l) “Garden Waste” means shrubbery and tree pruning, weeds, grass 

trimmings, roots, tree stumps, turf, and similar vegetation. 
 
m) “Hazard” means a risk of fire or damage to property and/or person(s) 

which may be caused by the burning of any waste and includes any 
nuisance. 
 

n)  “Municipal Ticket” means a form prescribed by the Chief 
Administrative Officer of the Summer Village or his/her delegate 
allowing for voluntary payment to the Summer Village of a fine amount 
established by this Bylaw. 

 
o) “Nuisance” means causing smoke which unreasonably affects the 

comfort or convenience of an individual and includes interference with 
use and enjoyment of property. 

 
p)  “Open Fire” means any fire that is not contained within a fire pit or 

stationary barbecue. 
 
q) “Outdoor Fireplace” means an enclosed and permanently affixed 

outdoor fire receptacle which incorporates a permanently affixed 
chimney or flue and is constructed of brick, rock, other masonry 
material or metal and has not been constructed as part of a building. 

  
r) “Peace Officer” means: 
 
 i)  a member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police; 
 ii) a Bylaw Officer as appointed by the Summer Village to enforce 

bylaws of the Summer Village; or 
 iii) a Special Constable as appointed by the Solicitor General of 

Alberta to enforce the bylaws of the Summer Village of 
Birchcliff. 

  
s) “Portable Fire Receptacle” means an outdoor fire receptacle which 

Is not permanently affixed. 
  
t) “Summer Village” means the Summer Village of Birchcliff. 
 
u) “Waste” includes: 
 

i) any rubbish, refuse, garbage, paper, packaging, pallets, 
containers, bottles, cans, rags, clothing, petroleum products, 
manure, human or animal excrement, sewage or the whole or 
part of any animal carcass;  

 
ii) the whole or a part of any article, raw or processed material, 

vehicle or other machinery that is disposed of; 
 

iii) animal or vegetable matter, including materials resulting from 
the handling, preparation, cooking, consumption, and storage 
of food; 

 

E-2-A

Page 3 of 7



iv) building waste; 
 

v) garden waste; 
 

vi) anything that is designated as waste in the regulation under the 
Environmental Protection & Enhancement Act, (1992) S.A., 
Chapter E 13.3. 

 
 
3. FIRE PITS, OUTDOOR FIREPLACE, PORTABLE FIRE RECEPTACLE & 

BBQ 
 
3.1 Fire pits must follow the below mentioned recommendations: 
 

a) the exception to these recommendations may be in areas where front 
and side areas are the only possible locations for a fire pit; 

 
b) a minimum of 3.4 meters (10 feet) clearance from buildings, property 

lines and combustible materials measured from the nearest fire pit 
edge or as recommended by the Administrator or Director of Disaster 
Services or their designates; 

 
c) be constructed of bricks, concrete blocks, heavy gauge metal or other 

non-combustible components; 
 
d) have a spark arrestor mesh screen of 1.30 centimetres (.50 inches) 

expanded metal (or equivalent) to contain spark and should be over 
the fire at all times; 

 
e) be the sole responsibility of the owner or occupier of the property; 
 
f) burn only charcoal briquettes, propane, natural gas, or wood products 

that are not contaminated with glue, paint, stain or other 
preservatives; 

 
g) have flames no higher than ninety (90) cm (approx. 3.0 ft) above the 

top of the surrounding grade of the fire pit. 
 
3.2. Any person who starts a propane, natural gas or charcoal barbecue or starts 

a fire in a fire pit that complies with Section 3 herein, shall: 
 

a) remain in charge, or keep a competent person in charge, of the 
barbecue or fire. 

 
3.3 Any person in charge of a barbecue or fire pit shall ensure that the same: 
 

a) does not create a risk or hazard to persons or to other properties; 
 

b) does not create a nuisance, which is offensive to any other person; 
 

c) is completely extinguished before supervision of the barbecue or fire 
ends. 

 
3.4 Any person who starts a fire, or who is in charge of a fire, on property owned 

or occupied by that person, shall, upon demand, pay to the Summer Village 
any and all costs incurred by the Summer Village to extinguish such fire 
when, in the opinion of a Peace Officer, Director of Disaster Services or the 
Administrator, the fire is a hazard to persons or to other properties. 

 
 

E-2-A

Page 4 of 7



4. OPEN AIR FIRES 
 
4.1 With the exception of propane, natural gas or charcoal barbecues, fire pits 

that comply with Section 3 herein, burning in campgrounds and parks where 
fireplaces, stoves and fire pits are provided by or approved by the Summer 
Village. 

 
 
5. FIRE BANS 
 
5.1 The Council or their delegates may enact a Fire Ban within the Summer 

Village at their discretion. 
 
5.2 No person shall start a fire at any place within the corporate limits of the 

Summer Village at any time while a Fire Ban is in place. 
 
 
6. FIREWORKS 
 
6.1 No person shall purchase, possess, handle, discharge, fire or set off 

fireworks within the Summer Village of Birchcliff unless the owner holds a 
permit signed by the Fire Service.  Permits will only be issued for the 
discharge of professional fireworks and discharged by professional 
pyrotechnicians as accredited by Natural Resources Canada in accordance 
and pursuant to the Alberta Fire Code. 

 
 
7. COST RECOVERY 
 
7.1 Where the Fire Department has taken any action whatsoever for the purpose 

of extinguishing a fire or responding to a fire call, false alarm or incident for 
the purpose of preserving life or property from injury or destruction by fire or 
other incident on land, the Administrator, or his/her designate may, in respect 
of any costs incurred in taking such action, charge any cost so incurred to the 
person who caused the fire, or to the owner or occupier of the land in respect 
of which the action was taken, pursuant to this Bylaw. 

 
7.2 In respect of any costs or fees levied or charged under this Bylaw: 

 
a) The Summer Village may recover such costs or fees as a debt due 

and owing to the Summer Village; and 
 

b)  In default of payment, where permitted by the Municipal Government 
Act, add the amounts to the tax roll of a parcel of land. 

 
 
8. PENALTIES 
 
8.1 Any person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw is guilty of an 
           offence and is liable to the penalties set out in Schedule “A” which is 

attached to and forms part of this Bylaw. 
 

8.2 If a person is issued a Municipal Ticket in respect of an offence, they may 
pay the fine amount established by this Bylaw for the offence at the Summer 
Village Administration Office and if the amount is paid on or before the 
required date, the person will not be prosecuted for the offence. 
 

8.3 A Peace Officer, Director of Disaster Services or the Fire Chief is hereby 
authorized and empowered to issue a violation ticket pursuant to the 
Provincial Offences Procedure Act to any person who the Peace Officer, 

E-2-A

Page 5 of 7



Director of Disaster Services or the Fire Chief has reasonable grounds to 
believe has contravened any provision of this Bylaw. 

 
 
9. SEVERABILITY & REPEAL 
 
9.1 If any part of this Bylaw is found to be invalid, then that part shall be severed, 

and the remaining Bylaw shall be maintained. 
 
9.2 Bylaw #168-12 is hereby rescinded upon 3rd and final reading. 
 
 
Read a First time in Council assembled this 18th day of May 2023. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Roger Dufresne, Mayor 

 
 
 

____________________________ 
Tanner Evans, Administrator 

 
 

 
Read a Second time in Council assemble this 15th day of June 2023. 
 
Read a Third and Final time in Council assembled and passed this 15th day of June 
2023.  
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Roger Dufresne, Mayor 

 
 
 

____________________________ 
Tanner Evans, Administrator

E-2-A

Page 6 of 7



 
SCHEDULE A 

 
PENALTIES 

 
 
SECTION           OFFICE DESCRIPTION     PENALTIES 
 
3.2                      non-supervision of fire  
                           1st offence                           $250.00 
                           2nd offence                          $500.00 + recovery costs 
                                                                       as per Schedule A 
                           3rd offence                           $1,000.00 + recovery costs 
                                                                       as per Schedule A 
 
3.3   Creating a risk, nuisance.      

  or not extinguishing fire  
  1st offence          $250.00 
  2nd offence          $500.00 + recovery costs 

            as per Schedule A 
3rd offence                           $1,000.00 + recovery costs 

                                                                       as per Schedule A 
     
4  Open air fire 
  1st offence          $250.00 
  2nd offence          $500.00 + recovery costs 
            as per Schedule A 
                           3rd offence                           $1,000.00 + recovery costs 
                                                                       as per Schedule A 
 
5  Fire during a Fire Ban 
  1st offence          $500.00 
  2nd offence          $1,000.00 + recovery costs 
            as per Schedule A 

3rd offence                           $5,000.00 + recovery costs 
                                                                       as per Schedule A 
 
6  Purchase, possess, handle, 
  discharge, fire or set off 
  fireworks  
  1st offence          $500.00 
  2nd offence          $1,00.00 
      3rd offence                           $5,000.00   
 
             
  
 
  
 

E-2-A

Page 7 of 7



Summer Village of Birchcliff 

June 15, 2022 

Council & Legislation 

Request for Decision  

Agenda Item: Committee Members Remuneration Policy 

Background: 
At the May Council meeting, Council discussed increasing the remuneration for 
members-at-large to be consistent with the remuneration paid to Councillors who 
sit on the same committees.  Administration has amended the Committee 
Members Remuneration Policy as directed and is bringing the new policy forward 
for Council’s review and consideration. 

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council approve the Committee Members Remuneration Policy.
2. Council table for amendments or further consideration.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1. Council approve the Committee Members Remuneration Policy.

Authorities: 
n/a 

F-1-A

Page 1 of 3



Policy Title 

Committee Member Remuneration Policy 

Date 

June 15, 2023 

Resolution No. 

BCC-23- 

POLICY STATEMENT: 

To provide a fair and equitable means of reimbursing Members-at-Large for their time, 
travel and subsistence while attending meetings, conferences, training seminars and 
other out-of-area municipal business events.   

DEFINITIONS: 

“Meeting” within the context of this Policy the term meeting shall include Committee 
Meetings, Municipal Planning Commission Meetings, Subdivision and Development 
Appeal Board Hearings. 

PROCEDURE: 

Meetings of Committee or Board 

Committee/Board meetings shall be scheduled as required based on the availability of the 
members and the time frame the meeting must occur by.  

Members-at-Large Rates:  

1. Members-at-Large remuneration will be, for time spent while traveling to or from a
meeting(s) and while in attendance at a meeting on the basis of the following rates
and time sections:

a. $130.00 - First Four Hours
b. $  32.50 - Every hour there after
c. $260.00 - Maximum payable for any meeting.

For clarity, any meeting or number of meetings that include more than one 
portion of the above times sections (i.e.  Meetings in excess of four hours), a 
member-at-large is entitled to combined remuneration for each time section 
involved.  The maximum paid in any single day will therefore be $260.00.   

F-1-A

Page 2 of 3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER REMUNERATION POLICY 

2. Other expenses associated with a Member-at-Large’s attendance at meetings will be 
paid in accordance with Travel and Subsistence for Staff and Council Policy.   
 

3. Members-at-large shall be reimbursed mileage at the rate per km posted by Canadian 
Revenue Agency on December 31 of each year when attending Council meetings or 
other authorized functions.   
 

General 

1.  New committee members will be responsible for completing the Committee 
Member Information Form containing their name, civic address, phone number, date 
of birth and social insurance number upon appointment. 
 

2. New committee members must provide a void cheque or direct deposit information 
to Administration to be paid electronically.  Cheques will not be issued for 
remunerations. 
 

3. All payments will be processed on the 15th and 30th of each month. 

 

F-1-A

Page 3 of 3



August 5, 2022 

Summer Village of Birchcliff 

June 15, 2023 

Council and Legislation 

Request for Decision:  

Agenda Item: Community Pier Policy 

Background: 
Administration has made changes to the Community Pier Policy as instructed by 
Council. The policy is attached for Council’s review and consideration.  

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council adopt the Community Pier Policy as presented.
2. Council adopt the Community Pier Policy as amended..
3. Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council adopt the Community Pier Policy. 

Authorities: 
MGA 201 (c) "A council is responsible for 
a) developing and evaluating the policies and programs of the municipality;"

F-1-B

Page 1 of 7



  
 

 
 
 

Policy Title 

Community Pier Policy 

Date: 

September 8, 2022 

Resolution No. 

BCC-22-106 

 
1. Introduction: 

The Summer Village of Birchcliff has a unique layout that provides the ability for 
every property owner to have access to the lake under the guidelines set by Alberta 
Environment and Parks. This policy ensures that everyone, including back lot 
owners, has a chance to have access to the lake in the form of a dock. It is the 
responsibility of everyone involved to be champions of stewardship to conserve the 
natural setting of the village and the health of Sylvan Lake and it's watershed. 

 
2. Goal: 

To provide guidelines for a community dock program in the Summer Village for the 
use, access, and enjoyment of the residents. 

 
3. Definitions: 

In this policy, including this section, unless the context otherwise requires: 
“Walkway” – access from shore to terminal platform 
“Terminal Platform” – located at the end of the walkway 
“Pier” - a platform supported on pillars or girders leading out from the shore into 
a body of water, used as a landing stage for boats. 
“Reserve” - means a parcel of land owned and subject to the management 
of the municipality and reserved for use as natural environment preservation areas 
or walkways or parks or playgrounds separating areas used for different purposes, 
and registered at the Land Titles Office as Reserve, Environmental Reserve or 
Municipal Reserve lot.  
“Resident Area” – An area of properties designated to a particular pier. 
“Shared Dock” - A dock, owned and operated by the municipality, that restricts use to a 
prescribed set of individuals or groups. 
“Slip” – a docking place for a boat can be located along a walkway or along the 
terminal platform. 
“Viewpoint Park” – A classification of reserve lands outlined in the Birchcliff Open 
Space Plan 

F-1-B

Page 2 of 7



2 | P a g e  

4. Policy: 
 

1) 1 slip/watercraft per residence: 
a. Slips are for the sole use of the property owner. 

i. Cannot be leased. 
ii. Can be sold/transferred within our “resident area” and 

administered through the village, they need to be applied and 
paid for. Each residence shall only be permitted to have one slip. 

b. Slips can accommodate one boat or two personal watercrafts (sea-doo). 
c. A layout of the shared dock must be submitted to administration. The 

layout must include single wide sections only, platforms of more than 
one section side by side will not be permitted. Switching of slip 
locations is to be done via communication with administration. The slip 
will remain with the registered property in the event of a sale. 

d. Only one pier will be eligible for each viewpoint park, and that pier will 
be a community pier. Administration will work with Alberta Environment 
and Parks to ensure any unregulated piers on our reserves are removed. 

e. Each boat/personal watercraft must have a cradle/hoist or sea leg; tying 
to the dock is not acceptable. 

 
2) Initial buy in: 
a. The pier program is to be entirely funded by the participants in the shared pier. 

i. Fee is nonrefundable as the slip remains with the registered property. 
ii. All associated costs will be paid for by the participating residents. 

iii. Once the fees are paid, the owner will receive one slip and an 
access agreement for permission to have the dock in the water 
and access it via the adjacent reserve. If the fee is not paid, there 
will be no access agreement granted. Slips and access 
agreements will be maintained by the Summer Village 
Administration. 

iv. All cheques will be made payable to the Summer Village of 
Birchcliff as administration of the financial transactions 
associated with the Community Pier will be handled through the 
Summer Village Administration office. 

v. Future slips for those who do not immediately buy in may be 
considered by applying to the Summer Village. The application 
will be awarded or rejected based on what our DLO allows (must 
fall into our “resident area”). 

vi. Future buy in cost will include a portion of the shared line 
extending out into the water and any previous improvements 
made to the reserve/stairs. 

 
 

F-1-B

Page 3 of 7



3 | P a g e  

3) Spring Installation and Fall Removal 
 a. To be managed by Administration. The Public Works department will contract 

out the spring installation and fall removal. 
 

4) Signage 
a. Appropriate signage to be posted, to be managed by Administration. No 

unauthorized signage will be permitted and will be removed by 
Administration. 

 
5) Annual Fee Collection 

a. A budget will be completed annually by administration and divided 
equally between communal docks. It will be adjusted for inflation 
annually and will include: 

i. Administration time fee of 5% 
ii. Annual costs 

iii. Late fee will be substantial – 20% per month. 
iv. Land improvements, repairs, or changes to the reserve land and/or access 

can be applied for and if approved will be paid for by the individual dock 
group making the application. 

 
6) Parking 

a. Comply with the Summer village Traffic Bylaw #221-19. Unauthorized 
parking under the Traffic Bylaw may result in a ticket. 

 
7) Storage 

a. No storing of equipment will be allowed on the reserves. Storing of the 
community pier will be offsite on the adjacent reserve will be arranged 
by Administration. Hoists cannot be stored on municipal lands. 

 
8) Fueling 

a. Absolutely no storage of fuel containers allowed on the dock or within 
the reserve area. 

 
9) Garbage 

a. Pack out what you pack in. 
b. Any waste from fishing shall not be dumped at the dock or the swimming area. 

 
10) Lake Access to Range Road 15 

a. Will be closed June 1st – September 1st of each year according to the 
Summer village Open Space Maser Plan as it is to be used as a winter 
access road. 

F-1-B

Page 4 of 7



4 | P a g e  

b. Residents are to have lifts in before that time, the barrier can be moved 
only by request to administration. 

 
11) Noise 

a. Quiet time to be respected with no operation of equipment during the 
following hours as stated in the Community Standards Bylaw #160-11; 
section 3.4 “Noise or disturbance that annoys or disturbs the peace of 
any other person is not allowed between 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. any 
day”. 

 
b. Be mindful of our neighbors, the shared piers and respective open 

spaces are not private party spots. Community Standard’s Bylaw #160- 
11; section 3.3 “In determining what constitutes noise likely to annoy or 
disturb the peace of other persons, consideration may be given, but is 
not limited to: 

1. Type, volume, and duration of the sound; 
2. Time of day and day of the week; 
3. Nature and use of the surrounding area” 

 
12) Alcohol or Cannabis 

a. No alcohol or cannabis consumed on Municipal land as stated in the 
Cannabis Consumption Bylaw # 214-18. 

 
13) Fires 

a. No fires or BBQ will be allowed in municipal reserves or on the shared piers. 
 

14) Violation 
a. The Summer Village retains the right to revoke the access agreement 

should this policy, the Reserves, Parks, and Pathways Bylaw or the 
Community Standards Bylaw not be followed. Any member who is in 
violation will be given a written warning. Repeat offences (any more than 
3 offences in a 3-year period) will result in a forfeit of the access 
agreement. No refunds will be given. 

 
15) Improvements 

a. Any improvements to the reserve area must done via a “change request” be 
applied for prior to January 1 (see step one of Community Pier Life Cycle on 
following page). This application is to be submitted to Administration, and will 
be presented to Council for decision as any works done on municipal lands 
require Council approval. Any improvements to the reserve area will be paid for 
entirely by the community pier group using that reserve for access. 

 
 

F-1-B

Page 5 of 7



5 | P a g e  

16) Process – Any changes to the community pier, such as the addition of members and dock 
sections must be applied for via a “change request” prior to January 1. See diagram on the 
following page. 

F-1-B

Page 6 of 7



6 | P a g e  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17)  
Page 1 

F-1-B

Page 7 of 7



June 4, 2023 

Summer Village of Birchcliff 

June 15, 2023 

Planning and Development 

Request for Decision 

Agenda Item: LUB Amendments Bylaw 248-23 

Background: 
At the last Council meeting, Council directed administration to prepare an 
amendment bylaw to the Land Use Bylaw to include regulations discussed at the last 
meeting. The following is a summary of the proposed amendments for Land Use 
Bylaw 248-23. 

1. Part Two: Development Permits, Contravention & Appeal - Add:
2.11 Non-Conforming Building and Uses:

1. A non-conforming use of land or a building may be
continued, but if that use is discontinued for a period of six (6)
consecutive months or more, any future use of the land or
building must conform to this Bylaw.

2. A non-conforming use of part of a building may be extended throughout
the building but the building, whether or not it is a nonconforming building,
may not be enlarged or added to and no structural alterations may be made
thereto or therein.

3. A non-conforming use of part of a lot may not be exceeded or transferred
in whole or in part to any other part of the lot and no additional buildings may
be constructed upon the lot while the non-conforming use continues.

4. A non-conforming building may continue to be used but the building may
not be enlarged, added to, rebuilt or structurally altered except:

a) to make it a conforming building;
b) for the routine maintenance of the building, if the Development

Authority considers it necessary; or
c) in accordance with the variance powers possessed by the

Development Authority pursuant to the Act and this Bylaw to approve a
development permit despite any non-compliance with the regulations of
this Bylaw.

5. If a non-conforming building is damaged or destroyed to the extent of
more than seventy-five percent (75%) of the value of the building above its

F-2-A

Page 1 of 4



June 4, 2023 

foundation, the building may not be repaired or rebuilt except in accordance 
with this Bylaw. 
 
6. The use of land or the use of a building is not affected by a change of 
ownership, tenancy, or occupancy of the land or building.” 

 
2. Part Three: Supplementary Regulations 1(5) Number of Buildings on a Parcel 

– Revise to:  
 

a) A Development Permit shall not be issued for more than one (1) 
principal dwelling on a lot. 

b) A Development Permit shall not be issued for more than two (2) 
accessory buildings on a lot. 

 
3. Part Three: Supplementary Regulations 3(1) Driveways (f) – Revise to: 

 
a) Driveways to be constructed of asphalt within the carriageway (between 

the road and private property line). 
 

4. Part Three: Add: 4(9) Wells and Pipelines: 
 

a) All development in proximity to a well, pipeline or sour 
gas facility shall adhere to the setback requirements as 
determined by the Alberta Energy Regulator 

 
 

Options For Consideration:  
1. Give first reading to Bylaw #248-23 and schedule public hearing at an upcoming  
    meeting, or 
2. Amend Bylaw #248-23, then give first reading and schedule public hearing.   
3. Council accept as information.  
 
Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information and administration to provide further proposed Land 
Use Bylaw amendments at an upcoming Council meeting. 
 
 
Authorities: 
Land Use Bylaw #170/13 – Council on its own initiative may give first reading to a 
bylaw to amend this Land Use Bylaw. 

Section 230(1) of the MGA – Council must hold a public hearing before second 
reading of a bylaw. 
 

F-2-A

Page 2 of 4



1 | P a g e  
 

SUMMER VILLAGE OF BIRCHCLIFF 
LAND USE BYLAW 

AMENDMENT BYLAW #248-23 
 

 
Being a Bylaw of the Summer Village of Birchcliff, in the Province of Alberta, to 
authorize amendments to the Summer Village of Birchcliff Land Use Bylaw 170-
13. 
 
WHEREAS Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, authorizes 
a Council to amend a land use bylaw; 
 
WHEREAS the Council deems it desirable to amend Land Use Bylaw 170-13; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Summer Village of Birchcliff, in the 
Province of Alberta, duly assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 
 
An amendment to the Land Use Bylaw 170/13: 
 

1. Part Two: Add: 2.11 Non-Conforming Building and Uses: 
 
1. A non-conforming use of land or a building may be 
continued, but if that use is discontinued for a period of 
six (6) consecutive months or more, any future use of the 
land or building must conform to this Bylaw. 
 
2. A non-conforming use of part of a building may be extended 
throughout the building but the building, whether or not it is a 
nonconforming building, may not be enlarged or added to and no 
structural alterations may be made thereto or therein. 
 
3. A non-conforming use of part of a lot may not be exceeded or 
transferred in whole or in part to any other part of the lot and no 
additional buildings may be constructed upon the lot while the non-
conforming use continues. 
 
4. A non-conforming building may continue to be used but the building 
may not be enlarged, added to, rebuilt or structurally altered except: 

a) to make it a conforming building; 
b) for the routine maintenance of the building, if the Development     

Authority considers it necessary; or 
c) in accordance with the variance powers possessed by the  

Development Authority pursuant to the Act and this Bylaw to 
approve a development permit despite any non-compliance with 
the regulations of this Bylaw. 
 

5. If a non-conforming building is damaged or destroyed to the extent of 
more than seventy-five percent (75%) of the value of the building above 
its foundation, the building may not be repaired or rebuilt except in 
accordance with this Bylaw. 
 
6. The use of land or the use of a building is not affected by a change of 
ownership, tenancy, or occupancy of the land or building.” 

 
2. Part Three: 1(5) Number of Buildings on a Parcel – Revise to:  

 
a) A Development Permit shall not be issued for more than one (1) 

principal dwelling on a lot. 
b) A Development Permit shall not be issued for more than two (2) 

accessory buildings on a lot. 
 

F-2-A

Page 3 of 4



Summer Village of Birchcliff 
Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw #248-23 

 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

3. Part Three: 3(1) Driveways (f) – Revise to: 
 
(f) Driveways to be constructed of asphalt within the carriageway 

(between the road and private property line). 
 

4. Part Three: Add: 4(9) Wells and Pipelines: 
 

a) All development in proximity to a well, pipeline or 
sour gas facility shall adhere to the setback 
requirements as determined by the Alberta Energy 
Regulator 

 
INTRODUCED AND GIVEN FIRST READING this 15th day of 
June 2023. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Roger Dufresne, Mayor 

 
 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

 
 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING HELD this     day of July 2023. 
 
 
GIVEN SECOND READING this   day of July 2023. 
 
 
GIVEN THIRD AND FINAL READING this    day of July 2023. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Roger Dufresne, Mayor 

 
 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

F-2-A

Page 4 of 4



Summer Village of  Birchcliff 

June 15, 2023 

Council Reports 

Information Item   

Council Reports: 
Roger Dufresne 
Ann Zacharias 
Frank Tirpak 

Committee Reports: 
Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 

• Town of Sylvan Lake Library Board
• Parkland Regional Library Board

Correspondence: 

Upcoming Meetings: 
Next Council Meeting:   July 20, 2023 
Organizational Meeting – July 20, 2023 

G-1,2,3

Page 1 of 41



 
  

 

 
 
 

THE TOWN OF SYLVAN LAKE LIBRARY BOARD – REGULAR MEETING HIGHLIGHTS  

WEDNESDAY – MAY 10, 2023 – 6:30PM      

1. Roles and Responsibilities – Board Training 

Ron Sheppard, Parkland Regional Library, attended to provide training to the Board on Roles and 

Responsibilities.  This training acted as both an orientation and refresher training for Board Members.  

2. Treasurer’s Report    

The Treasurer’s Report was approved as presented.   

The Q1 and Q2 payments have been received from the Town of Sylvan Lake totalling $217,882.20. 

3. Director’s Report  

The Director’s Report was approved as presented. 

There is currently a vacant Library Clerk position.  The Library Director is investigating hiring a full-time staff 

member as the library is reaching pre-covid numbers and a busy summer is anticipated.   

The library will be closed on May 29 for a staff meeting and professional development.    

As part of the Town of Sylvan Lake’s 50th Avenue Redevelopment Phase 3 project, underground utility and 

roadway infrastructure is being upgraded.  Staged road closures on 50th Avenue will be in effect during the 

performance of the work between 45th Street and 49th Street and detours around 50th Avenue will be 

provided.  The majority of the project is anticipated to be completed this season and the remaining items 

such as a second lift of asphalt and permanent line painting the following year.  This staged approach will 

allow for any settlement due to the excavation that may happen over the winter months.  As per the Town 

of Sylvan Lake Community Standards ByLaw No. 1739/2017, the hours of construction shall be from 7:00am 

to 7:00pm Monday to Saturday.  Sunday work and evening work my also be required as weather and 

schedule requirements dictate.  For more information on the project, please visit the project webpage at:    

https://www.sylvanlake.ca/en/business.development/SO-avenue.aspx 

4. Programming Report 

Maddie, Programmer with the library, took free library cards to the Grade 6 students of Beacon Hill 

Elementary School for the “My Library Card” program.     

G-1,2,3

Page 2 of 41

https://www.sylvanlake.ca/en/business.development/SO-avenue.aspx


New programs for the summer are open for registration including the TD Summer Reading Club.  This 

weekly program offers crafts, new connections, and a love of reading.  More information can be obtained 

by phoning (403) 887-2130 or checking out the events page:  

https://sylvanlibrary.prl.ab.ca/events?d=0 

5. Policy  

Work will continue with sub-committees to review policies as necessary.        

Meeting adjourned at 8:44pm. 

Next Regular Meeting – June 14, 2023, at 6:30pm. 

G-1,2,3

Page 3 of 41

https://sylvanlibrary.prl.ab.ca/events?d=0


 

 
 

PRLS Board Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2023 
 

The regular meeting of the Parkland Regional Library System Board was called to order at 10:05 a.m. on 
Thursday May 18, 2023 in the Combined Board Room, Lacombe. 
 
Present: Teresa Rilling (Board Chair), Alison Barker-Jevne, Jul Bissell, Doug Booker, Deb Coombes, 

Jaime Coston, Edna Coulter, Teresa Cunningham, Jeff Eckstrand, Richard Forsberg, Elaine 
Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Clark German, Barbara Gibson, Barb Gilliat, Twyla Hale, Pam 
Hansen, Dana Kreil, Stephen Levy, Julie Maplethorpe, Joy-Anne Murphy, Norma Penney, 
Leonard Phillips, Ray Reckseidler, Deb Smith, Les Stulberg, Delaney Thoreson, Carlene 
Wetthuhn, Angie Fricke (alt. for Shannon Wilcox), Darren Wilson 

 With Regrets: Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, 
Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, Janice Wing 

Absent: Cal David, Amanda Derksen, Kathy Hall, Michael Hildebrandt, Ricci Matthews, Jackie 
Northey, Shawn Peach, Diane Roth, Sandy Shipton, Michelle Swanson, Doug Weir, 
Patricia Young 

Staff: Kara Hamilton, Andrea Newland, Ron Sheppard, Tim Spark, Donna Williams 

Guests: Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky (MNP) 

Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Teresa Rilling.  

As part of PRLS’ legislative compliance procedures, board members who send regrets are 
excused at the beginning of each meeting.  

Motion by Stephen Levy to excuse Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc 
Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, and Janice Wing from attendance 
at the board meeting on February 23, 2023 and remain members of the Parkland Board in good 
standing.  
       CARRIED     
       PRLS 24/2023 

1.1 Agenda 
 
1.1.2 Adoption of the Agenda  

Rilling asked if there were any additions or deletions to the agenda. There were none.  
 
 

G-1,2,3

Page 4 of 41



 
 

 
 
 
Motion by Len Phillips to accept the agenda as presented. 

        CARRIED  
PRLS 25/2023 

1.2. Approval of Minutes 
Rilling asked if there were any amendments to the February 23, 2023 minutes. There were none.  

Motion by Ray Reckseidler to approve the minutes of the February 23, 2023 meeting as 
presented. 

CARRIED 
PRLS 26/2023 

 
1.3. Business arising from the minutes of the February 23, 2023 meeting 

Rilling asked if there was any business arising from the minutes. There was none.  

2. Business Arising from the Consent Agenda  
Rilling asked if there was any business arising from the consent agenda. There was none. 

Motion by Barb Gilliat to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
        CARRIED  

PRLS 27/2023  

3.1. Approval of the 2022 Parkland Audit   
Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky from Parkland’s audit company, MNP, presented Parkland’s 
audit. In their report, the auditors state: 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Library as at December 31, 2022, and the results of 
its operations, changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

Parkland received a clean audit. Bauman noted the three items in the management letter from 
last year have been resolved, which shows the commitment of Parkland Staff to ensuring 
financial management is sound.  

 Motion by Elaine Fossen to approve the Parkland Regional Library Board 2022 Audit Findings, 
Report to the Board of Directors/Executive Committee for December 31, 2022, and the Financial 
Statements for December 31, 2022, as presented.  

        CARRIED  
        PRLS 28/2023 
3.2 Audit Policy     

Sheppard reviewed the potentially changed audit policy from the Parkland Policies and Bylaws 
document. At the March 16th Executive Committee meeting, staff were directed to create a draft 
policy allowing the Executive Committee of the board to approve the audit. Parkland’s auditors  

G-1,2,3

Page 5 of 41



 
 

 

stated it is typical practice to approve financial statements at the initial presentation to a board 
or Executive Committee representing the board. Parkland’s auditors are required to perform 
audit testing with the Parkland staff until the audit is approved.  

Staff inquired with the Public Library Services Branch (PLSB) whether there were any legislative 
requirements that would impede the Executive Committee from being the body responsible for 
approving Parkland’s audit. They responded that there is “nothing explicit in the legislation. 
However, it is implied that finances are the responsibility of the corporate board as a whole, not 
the Executive.” 

One advantage of having the audit approved earlier is that Parkland might receive its 
government operating grant and the rural library services grant earlier. Submitting an approved 
audit is one of the Government of Alberta’s annual grant requirements. 

After some discussion, a motion was made:  
Motion by Joy-Anne Murphy to hold a special online meeting of the full board to coincide with 
the completion of the audit for the full purpose of approving the Parkland Audit.  
       DEFEATED  
       PRLS 29/2023 

Motion by Deb Smith to change PRLS Executive Committee policy to read “The Executive 
Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving Parkland’s audit which will be forwarded 
to the board at the board’s next meeting.  
       CARRIED  
       PRLS 30/2023 

Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky left the meeting at 11:09 a.m. 

11:10 – 11:19 Comfort break 

3.3. 2024 Budget/Requisition Increase 
Sheppard reviewed a preliminary budget for 2024 for information. In the budget, there were no 
changes made to the requisition, or salary and benefits lines, excepting to adjust for current 
staffing levels. In the case of provincial operating funding, staff assumed the increases 
announced this year will continue next year.  

All other adjustments to specific lines throughout the budget are a reflection of estimates based 
on inflation or actual costs over previous years.  

 

 

 

G-1,2,3

Page 6 of 41



 
 

 

Without addressing salaries, there is an initial balance of +$30,256 at this time. 

Motion by Deb Coombes to receive for information.  
       CARRIED 

        PRLS 31/2023 

3.4.  Salary Grid    
Sheppard explained. At the September 15, 2022 board meeting, following the Compensation 
Review presented by Dr. Margaret Law, a motion was made “to direct Ron Sheppard to work 
with Dr. Law to develop a seven-step payroll grid to replace Parkland’s current grid”. This 
motion was a result of a recommendation from the Compensation Review which stated: “The 
salary grid has an unusual number of steps. The recommendation is 5-8 steps, which is an 
estimate of the number of years that it takes to master the job.” Currently, there are fifteen 
steps on Parkland’s salary grid with uniform increments of 2.5%. 

Based on Law’s Compensation Review, Parkland’s salary ranges were acceptable. However, the 
Executive Committee was unable to provide direction to staff regarding the adoption of a new 
salary grid.   

The complexity of reducing the steps of the salary grid were such that the Executive Committee 
could not resolve the issue at their last two meetings. Instead, they decided to form a 
subcommittee which would examine this issue comprehensively. Reducing the steps of the grid 
encompasses Parkland’s whole compensation philosophy, policy, and budget.  

Since Parkland still has to develop a budget for 2024, the Executive Committee recommended 
using the current salary grid and compensation policy for one more year since it is unlikely a 
new grid can be established before the budget needs to be approved by the board in 
September. 

Volunteers from the Executive Committee for the subcommittee include Deb Smith, Barb Gilliat, 
Len Phillips, and Janice Wing.  

Motion by Deb Smith to use the current compensation policy to create the 2024 budget, and to 
create a subcommittee to work on creating a new compensation policy and salary grid.   
       CARRIED      

PRLS 32/2023 

Motion by Les Stulberg to appoint Twyla Hale, Jul Bissell, and Stephen Levy to join the 
compensation review subcommittee. 
       CARRIED 
       PRLS 33/2023 

Twyla Hale left the meeting at 12:00 p.m. 

G-1,2,3

Page 7 of 41



 
 
 

 
3.5. Marketing and Advocacy Committee Report   

Norma Penney reviewed the Advocacy Committee report. She explained the history of the 
committee, its expansion to the other library systems, and its many recent efforts, especially 
those associated with the provincial election.  

Despite recent increases to library grants from the Government of Alberta, the Advocacy 
Committee believes library boards need to still be visiting current MLAs to thank them for the 
additional grant funding with an undertone that ideally more needs to be done to sustain rural 
public library service in particular.  

Many materials have been created to assist library boards with this advocacy effort. 

After Penney’s update, Sheppard reviewed the Marketing Report, and indicated where to find 
the latest Municipal ROIs on Parkland’s website at the following URL:  

Return on Investment - Parkland Regional Library System (https://www.prl.ab.ca/about-
us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca) 

Board members are strongly encouraged to download and print their municipal ROIs and 
present them to council.  

In addition, Parkland has created a marketing strategy to contribute to the success of the main 
priorities that directly relate to the main goals of the Strategic Plan 2023-2025. This plan is 
meant to be a general guiding document, with detailed action items to be determined by 
Parkland staff. 

Motion by Doug Booker to receive the Marketing and Advocacy Committee report for 
information. 

CARRIED 
       PRLS 34/2023 

3.6. ALTA Representative  
Sheppard reviewed. Former Parkland Board member Bob Green is stepping down from his long-
time position as the Parkland representative on the board of the Alberta Library Trustee 
Association (ALTA). His term will be ending on May 31st this year. Green has asked for 
nominations or volunteers to serve on the ALTA board.  

Sheppard asked for nominations or volunteers. Barb Gilliat volunteered to be Parkland’s new  
 ALTA representative.  

3.7.1.  Director’s Report 
3.7.2.  Library Services Report  
3.7.3.  I.T. Report  
3.7.4.  Finance & Operations Report 

G-1,2,3

Page 8 of 41

file://alap-fs02.prl.local/PRLStaff$/PRLAdmin/Board%20&%20Municipalities/Board%20and%20Committees/Board/2023%20Board/May%2018,%202023/Return%20on%20Investment%20-%20Parkland%20Regional%20Library%20System%20(https:/www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca)
file://alap-fs02.prl.local/PRLStaff$/PRLAdmin/Board%20&%20Municipalities/Board%20and%20Committees/Board/2023%20Board/May%2018,%202023/Return%20on%20Investment%20-%20Parkland%20Regional%20Library%20System%20(https:/www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca)


 
Rilling asked if there were any questions regarding the Director’s 
Report, Library Services Report, I.T. Report, or the Finance and 

Operations Report. There were none. 

Motion by Len Phillips to receive the Director’s Report, Library Services Report, I.T. Report, and 
Finance and Operations Report for information.  
       CARRIED 
       PRLS 35/2023 

3.12. Parkland Community Update  
Stettler and Stettler County formed an intermunicipal library board agreement three years 
ago, which has just expired. They have renewed the agreement for five more years and 
celebrated that fact on May 4th.  

The Penhold & District Public Library have been running programs with the assistance of 
children from the community. In addition, their friends of the library group will hold an artisan 
gala with a chocolatier, caricature artist, and more.  

The Sedgewick & District Municipal Library has been in their new location downtown for six 
months and support/demand for the library has continued to increase.  

The Village of Cremona recommends a CBC podcast by Terry O’Reilly about marketing for 
libraries. They have also set up a small free library in their community and encourages others to 
do the same.  

The Clive Public Library is holding a program called “Books and Cooks” for pre-school aged 
children that has been very popular.  

The Caroline Municipal Library has been holding a program called “Sensory Wednesday” 
featuring sand and water play that has been extremely popular. They are also holding film nights 
through the summer.  

Motion by Dana Kreil to receive the Parkland Community Update for information.  
        CARRIED 
        PRLS 36/2023 

4. Adjournment 
Motion by Norma Penney to adjourn the meeting at 12:17 p.m. 

CARRIED  
        PRLS 37/2023 

 
 
 
____________________________________  

 Chair 

G-1,2,3

Page 9 of 41



 

Parkland Update 

Thursday, May 18, 2023  

 
 

Get the latest Parkland updates, library news, training, events, and more! 
 

  

 

Promotional Materials Available to Borrow  

 

 

Parkland has a variety of promotional materials available for your library to borrow. 

Promote your next program, event, or trade show with banners, prize wheels, a 

tablecloth, and more! Check out our latest blog post on why items like these are 

important to include in your marketing. Library staff can view photos of the materials in 

the Q Drive and fill out the booking form to reserve them.  

   

 

Alberta Provincial Election Advocacy Resources 

G-1,2,3

Page 10 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=4fe7db17b0&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=ebd867a872&e=61be8a5b9b


 

 

Prepared by the seven library systems in 

Alberta, the "Libraries—Value Beyond 

Words"  toolkit can be used by libraries and 

library patrons who are advocating for local 

library services during the Provincial 

election campaign period. The provincial 

election is being held on Monday, May 

29th. The toolkit can be accessed on 

the PRLS Advocacy webpage.  

   
 

  

 

LIBRARY NEWS 

 
 

Find out about important deadlines and see what's happening at other Parkland Libraries! 
  
 

 

Updated OH&S Resources  

 

Visit the OHS Resource Portal for bulletins, infographics, and recorded webinars supporting workplace health 

and safety in Alberta, or subscribe to the OHS eNews from the Government of Alberta. You'll find amazing and 

helpful resources to use in your library. Keep up to date and discover what changes are coming and things to 

watch for, including events, and so much more.  

   

 

TRAINING & EVENTS 

 
 

Dates and registration information for upcoming library training and events. 
  
 

 

Upcoming Webinars 

• Library Managers Coffee Break - May 24 at 10am. Join on Teams from the calendar invite.  

• PLC Meeting and Programming Workshop - June 5 at 10am. Hybrid PLC meeting. Join virtually via 

the calendar invite, or email libraryservices@prl.ab.ca to RSVP for in-person by May 23.  

If you would like more information about these training opportunities, please contact libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. 

To watch past training sessions, visit Niche Academy. 

   
 

Book Ban and Censorship: 

Managing Public Comment 

Sections and Material 

Challenges Webinar 

G-1,2,3

Page 11 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=d1af3a3849&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=59b43c4814&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=285909b6f7&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca
mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=89f078a29a&e=61be8a5b9b


 

Tuesday, May 23 

12pm 

 

The 2021-2022 "Surge" of US library 

challenges marked the biggest number of 

reported attempts to remove library 

materials since the Office for Intellectual 

Freedom was founded. The technique 

shifted from quiet requests for 

reconsideration to public challenges at 

board meetings. Register for this webinar 

to learn tips, policy ideas, and more! $49 

USD 

   
  

Occupational Health and Safety 

Toolkit: OHS for Alberta 

Nonprofits Webinar 

On-Demand 

 

This instructional video provides nonprofits 

and charities with an overview of Alberta’s 

Occupational Health and Safety Act to help 

them get on the right track and comply with 

the legislation. A key point is that OHS 

regulations apply not only to employees but 

to volunteers as well.  

   
  

 

 

G-1,2,3

Page 12 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=00f9550d28&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=f89e67dc81&e=61be8a5b9b


 

 

Parkland Update 

Thursday, June 1, 2023  
 
 

Get the latest Parkland updates, library news, training, events, and more! 
 

  

 

Join us for Stronger Together, November 3, 9 and 10! There will be one full day online, and 
two days in-person at the River Cree Resort and Casino in Enoch, AB (west Edmonton). You 
can look forward to a variety of sessions suited for anyone who works with, and loves, 
libraries, including a focused development day for Library Trustees.  
  
Online Stronger Together Conference – November 3rd, 2023 
In-Person Development Day for Library Trustees – November 9th, 2023 
In-Person Stronger Together Conference – November 10th, 2023 
  
For any inquiries about the conference, please send your questions to 
librariesarestrongertogether@gmail.com. 
Stay updated with all our conference news by following the conference pages on Facebook 

G-1,2,3

Page 13 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=080fa517df&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:librariesarestrongertogether@gmail.com
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2cb43f8726&e=61be8a5b9b


 

and Twitter, or visit the Stronger Together website to learn more. 
   

 

Young at Heart Trade Show  

 

 

Parkland attended the Young at Heart Trade Show in Red Deer earlier this week. We spoke 
with over 200 people about libraries. We got questions about ILL's and eResources, and 
many people shared their positive experiences and views of the library. Our goal was to raise 
awareness and encourage people to visit their local libraries to see all the amazing services 
offered, and we considered it to be a great success!  
   

G-1,2,3

Page 14 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=5f133121be&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=1148493a34&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=10904f127b&e=61be8a5b9b


 

Library Managers Coffee Break 

 

Member library managers are invited to a monthly virtual coffee break hosted by Parkland. We 
discuss upcoming events, changes, or challenges. It is a great opportunity to bounce ideas off 
other library managers, ask for or give feedback, and network with peers. You can find the 
recurring invitation in your calendar or reach out to Library Services if you need to be re-added 
at libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. 
   

 

Vistaprint Pro Shop 

 

Did you know your library can access the Vistaprint Pro Shop for professionally printed marketing 
materials and swag? With the membership that Parkland pays for, libraries can access the 
customized shopping portal and receive materials at 30%-50% off of their regular price. Initally, 
all libraries were activated with their main library email address as the login. Contact Hailey at 
hhalberg@prl.ab.ca if you need assistance. 
   

    

 

LIBRARY NEWS 
 
 

Find out about important deadlines and see what's happening at other Parkland Libraries! 
  
 

 

West Coast Seeds Donation 

 

We would like to thank West Coast Seeds for their $750 donation of seeds for our revamp 
of the Out in the Garden Children's Programming Kits! The kits are quite ready yet (stay 
tuned for their completion) but we can't wait to see our member libraries help the kids in 
their community learn about gardening!  
  
Looking to start a seed garden at your local library? Check out West Coast Seeds, Seed 

G-1,2,3

Page 15 of 41

mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca?subject=Coffee%20Break
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=e6b6d16bcf&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:hhalberg@prl.ab.ca?subject=Vistaprint%20Pro%20Shop
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2aedb6cd4a&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=a56474b200&e=61be8a5b9b


 

Donation Program!  
   

 

Minister's Awards for Excellence in Public Library Excellence for 2023 
Application Deadline: Thursday, June 15 
 
Letters from Minister Rebecca Schulz, from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs, were recently 
emailed to all municipalities and library boards announcing the launch of the 2023 Minister's 
Awards for Municipal and Public Library Excellence. This is an opportunity to recognize library 
boards for their efforts to serve communities across Alberta. Find information on the Minister's 
Awards and submission process on the awards program website and good luck! 
   

 

TRAINING & EVENTS 
 
 

Dates and registra�on informa�on for upcoming library training and events. 
  
 

 

Upcoming Webinars 

• PLC Meeting and Programming Workshop - June 5 at 10am. Hybrid PLC meeting. 
Join virtually via the calendar invite, or join us in person if you have RSVP'd.  

If you would like more information about these training opportunities, please contact 
libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. To watch past training sessions, visit Niche Academy. 
   

 

Alberta Seniors Week: Free 
Canadian Revenue Agency (CRA) 
Webinar Sessions 
Monday, June 5 - Sunday, June 11 
 
Join the CRA for free online information 
sessions during Alberta Seniors Week. To 
register for any (or all) of the webinars, 
email OUTREACHABG@cra-arc.gc.ca 
with your name and the session(s) you 
would like to attend. They'll email a link to 

G-1,2,3

Page 16 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=a56474b200&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2d155252f2&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=13622bff65&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:OUTREACHABG@cra-arc.gc.ca


 

you to join the webinar via Microsoft 
Teams.   

• June 5, 10:00 am Be Scam Smart! 
• June 8, 10:00 am Be Scam Smart! 
• June 6, 10:00 am Seniors Benefits 

& Credits 
• June 7, 10:00 am  Disability Tax 

Credit/Medical Expenses/Home 
Accessibility Tax Credit 

Feel free to print this poster to display in 
your library today!  
   

 

 

LAA Speaker Series: Public 
Organizations in a Time of 
Upheaval 
Wednesday, June 14 
10:30am 

If you missed part one of this speaker 
series, join the Library Association of 
Alberta (LAA) for part two! LAA's Virtual 
Speaker Series features sessions focusing 
on professional growth and development 
for library professionals from sectors and in 
all career growth and development 
stages. Registration for the Speaker Series 
is free and open to all members of the 
Alberta Library Community, regardless of 
LAA membership 
status. Visit laa.heysummit.com for more 
information and to register. 
  

  

The Fight Against Book Bans: 
How Do We Move 
Forward? Webinar 
Wednesday, June 14 
12:00pm 
 
Book challenges and bans have been on 
the rise in North America since 2020, 
especially in public and school libraries. 
Many librarians have faced these 
challenges with courage and commitment 
to the principles of intellectual freedom and 
access to information, while others have 
yet to deal with this issue. Register for this 
webinar to refresh your understanding of 
intellectual freedom, explore the rise in 
book challenges, consider how to respond 
to challenges, and draw on the 
experiences and perspectives of other 
library professionals.  
   

 

 

The Practice of Leadership: 
Nurturing Your Capacity to Lead 
Your Team, Your Organization, & 
Your Community Webinar 
Wednesday, June 14 
1:00pm 
 
In this free webinar for senior leaders, team 
leads, and aspiring leaders, the experts at 
IntegralOrg give an overview of leadership 
theory, together with ways to put 
knowledge into practice. 
   

   

 

G-1,2,3

Page 17 of 41

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=9e14326b21&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=db669a0cef&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=db669a0cef&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=1bbc822ac2&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=cd4a954c14&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=cd4a954c14&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=e0b4ee6f7c&e=61be8a5b9b


$1,000.35

2020 materials allotment $132.21 $915.59
2020 Rural Services Grant 1 $621.60 $8,938.04

$753.81 $10,776.00

$20,629.63

$2,400.00

$23,783.44

$23.78

            County libraries averaged a 42% discount on books purchased through PRLS
                     1 The Summer Village of Birchcliff assigned a rural population of 112 to Sylvan Lake Municipal Library  
                     2 Number of county families can save the $60 non-resident fee

S.V. of Birchcliff Return on Investment $1= 

Strong Libraries, Strong Communities

Potential non-resident savings for households  
in SV of Birchcliff  
40 Households 2

*Number of households from the 2016 Federal Census

Total financial benefits to libraries and patrons=

Computers for library use
Software & licensing 
SuperNet connection 

Residents can register at any PRLS library without 
paying the minimum $60 non-resident fee

2020 Return on Investment for the S.V. of Birchcliff

S.V. of Birchcliff membership levy to Parkland Regional Library = 
(Based on official 2020 City population of 117 x $8.55 requisition amount)

Direct financial return as allocated to 
Sylvan Lake Municipal Library  

Technology Savings to Sylvan Lake Municipal 
Library 

G-1,2,3

Page 18 of 41



 

Strong Libraries, Strong Communities 
 

 
System Membership Benefits: 

• 680,000 items in the system collection 
• eBooks, eAudiobooks, and eMagazines, plus shared eBooks from 4 other regional 

systems 
• Subscription databases including Ancestry (genealogy), Solaro (Alberta curriculum 

support), Consumer Reports, Niche Academy, Grant Connect, and Novelist; Press Reader 
(newspapers & magazines) Pronunciator (language learning), and Alberta eBooks  

• Broadband internet connection (SuperNet) and Wi-Fi  
• SuperNet connection paid for by the Government of Alberta 
• Centrally managed computers, network, and website 
• 24/7 I.T. support included  
• Shared library database to manage borrowers and materials (Integrated Library System) 

with public access for patrons to manage their own account  
• 42% bulk discount on library books purchased through Parkland 
• Cataloguing and shelf-ready processing of purchased and donated library material 
• Library supplies (library cards, barcodes, etc.) included 
• Shared specialty collections including:  

o Large print books 
o Audio books 
o Program kits (book-based, tech-based, gaming, virtual reality) 
o Technical equipment & promotional items 

• Access to library collections across Alberta (in-person and through interlibrary lending) 
and throughout Canada  

• Alternate format collections for visually impaired and print disabled 
• Weekly or bi-weekly delivery of library materials  
• Professional library expertise (consulting services) and shared regional knowledge  
• Included training for staff and trustees 

 

G-1,2,3

Page 19 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 20 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 21 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 22 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 23 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 24 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 25 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 26 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 27 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 28 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 29 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 30 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 31 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 32 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 33 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 34 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 35 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 36 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 37 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 38 of 41



G-1,2,3

Page 39 of 41



 

  
 1 

 

 

PRLS BOARD TALK 

Highlights of the Parkland Regional 
Library Board Meeting 

MAY 18, 2023 

Audit Report Approved 
Parkland’s audit was presented to the board by MNPs 
Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky.  

Parkland received a clean audit. Bauman noted that 
three of the five items in the management letter from 
last year have been resolved.  

A copy of the Auditor’s Report and Report to the Board 
has been sent to your municipality.  

Audit Policy  
Sheppard reviewed the potentially changed audit policy 
from the Parkland Policies and Bylaws document. At the 
March 16th Executive Committee meeting, staff were 
directed to create a draft policy allowing the Executive 
Committee of the board to approve the audit. Parkland’s 
auditors stated it is typical practice to approve financial 
statements at the initial presentation to a board or 
Executive Committee representing the board. Parkland’s 
auditors are required to perform audit testing with the 
Parkland staff until the audit is approved. 

One advantage of having the audit approved earlier by 
the Executive Committee is that Parkland might receive 
its government operating grant and the rural library 
services grant earlier. Submitting an approved audit is 
one of the Government of Alberta’s annual grant 
requirements. 

After much discussion, the board agreed to the policy 
change.  

 

ALTA Representative 
Former Parkland board member, Bob Green, has stated 
his intention to step down from his long-time role as 
ALTA board member and Area 3 representative on May 
31st. A call for nominations or volunteers resulted in 
Barb Gilliat, from the Village of Alix, volunteering for the 
position. Thank you, Barb!  

2024 Budget/Requisition Increase 
Sheppard reviewed the proposed budget for 2024. Even 
without taking into account salary increases, it will be a 
tight budget year despite additional provincial funding.  

Salary Grid 
In September of 2022, a compensation review was 
performed by Dr. Margaret Law. Out of that review a 
motion was made by the board “to direct Ron Sheppard 
to work with Dr. Law to develop a seven-step payroll grid 
to replace Parkland’s current grid”. This motion was a 
result of a recommendation from the Compensation 
Review which stated: “The salary grid has an unusual 
number of steps. The recommendation is 5-8 steps, 
which is an estimate of the number of years that it takes 
to master the job.”  

The complexity of reducing the steps of the salary grid 
were such that the Executive Committee could not 
resolve the issue at their last two meetings. Instead, they 
decided to form a subcommittee which would examine 
the issue comprehensively. Reducing the steps of the 
grid encompasses Parkland’s whole compensation 
philosophy, policy, and budget.  

Seven volunteers for the subcommittee include Deb 
Smith, Barb Gilliat, Len Phillips, Janice Wing, Twyla Hale, 
Jul Bissell, and Stephen Levy.  

It is hoped that the new Compensation Policy will be 
completed in time to be incorporated into Parkland’s 
2025 budget. 

Marketing and Advocacy Report  
Norma Penney reviewed the Advocacy Committee 
report. She explained the history of the committee, its 
expansion to the other library systems, and its many 
recent efforts, especially those associated with the 
provincial election.  

Despite recent increases to library grants from the 
Government of Alberta, the Advocacy Committee 
believes library boards need to still be visiting current 

G-1,2,3

Page 40 of 41



 

  
 2 

 

MLAs to thank them for the additional grant funding 
with an undertone that ideally more needs to be done to 
sustain rural public library service in particular.  
Many materials have been created to assist library 
boards with this advocacy effort. 

After Penney’s update, Sheppard reviewed the Marketing 
Report, and indicated where to find the latest Municipal 
ROIs on Parkland’s website at the following URL:  
Return on Investment - Parkland Regional Library System 
(https://www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-
investmentprl.ab.ca) 

Board members are strongly encouraged to download 
and print their municipal ROIs and present them to 
council.  

In addition, Parkland has created a marketing strategy to 
contribute to the success of the main priorities that 
directly relate to the main goals of the Strategic Plan 
2023-2025. This plan is meant to be a general guiding 
document, with detailed action items to be determined 
by Parkland staff. 

Committee News from Trustees 
Stettler and Stettler County formed an intermunicipal 
library board agreement three years ago, which has just 
expired. They have renewed the agreement for five more 
years and celebrated that fact on May 4th.  

The Penhold & District Public Library have been 
running programs with the assistance of children from 
the community. In addition, their friends of the library 
group will hold an artisan gala with a chocolatier, 
caricature artist, and more.  

The Sedgewick & District Municipal Library has been 
in their new location downtown for six months and 
support/demand for the library has continued to 
increase.  

The Village of Cremona recommends a CBC podcast by 
Terry O’Reilly about marketing for libraries. They have 
also set up a small free library in their community and 
encourages others to do the same.  

The Clive Public Library is holding a program called 
“Books and Cooks” for pre-school aged children that has 
been very popular.  

The Caroline Municipal Library has been holding a 
program called “Sensory Wednesday” featuring sand and 

water play that has been extremely popular. They are 
also holding film nights through the summer.  

Board Members Present 
Teresa Rilling (Board Chair), Alison Barker-Jevne, Jul 
Bissell, Doug Booker, Deb Coombes, Jaime Coston, Edna 
Coulter, Teresa Cunningham, Jeff Eckstrand, Richard 
Forsberg, Elaine Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Clark German, 
Barbara Gibson, Barb Gilliat, Twyla Hale, Pam Hansen, 
Dana Kreil, Stephen Levy, Julie Maplethorpe, Joy-Anne 
Murphy, Norma Penney, Leonard Phillips, Ray 
Reckseidler, Deb Smith, Les Stulberg, Delaney Thoreson, 
Carlene Wetthuhn, Angie Fricke (alt. for Shannon Wilcox), 
Darren Wilson 

Regrets 
Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc 
Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, Shannon Wilcox, Bill 
Windsor, Janice Wing 

Absent 
Cal David, Amanda Derksen, Kathy Hall, Michael 
Hildebrandt, Ricci Matthews, Jackie Northey, Shawn 
Peach, Diane Roth, Sandy Shipton, Michelle Swanson, 
Doug Weir, Patricia Young 

Staff  
Kara Hamilton, Andrea Newland, Ron Sheppard, Tim 
Spark, Donna Williams 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Next Meeting: September 14, 2023 (in-Person) 
For more information, or if you want a copy of the draft 
minutes from this board meeting, please contact PRLS.  

G-1,2,3

Page 41 of 41


	Agenda
	C-1 MINUTES
	Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting of the Summer Village of Birchcliff, Province of Alberta, held May 18, 2023, in the Summer Villages on Sylvan Lake Administration Office at Sylvan Lake, Alberta.
	AGENDA
	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
	BCC-23-064 MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that the minutes of the regular meeting of Council held on April 20, 2023, be approved as presented.
	CARRIED
	BCC-23-065 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Zacharias that Council purchase the H2S monitor conditionally on approval of the Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater Commission, with funds to come from the Sewer Capital Reserve.
	CARRIED
	3)  Development Update
	BCC-23-066    MOVED by Councillor Tirpak that Council accept the information items as presented.
	CARRIED

	C-2 MPC MINUTES
	C-3 SDAB MINUTES
	D-1 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE UPDATE
	Payables-Update
	Payables-List of Accounts for Approval
	Council Expenses

	D-2 PUBLIC WORKS REPORT
	D-3 DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
	D-4 CAO REPORT
	CAO report 2
	COUNCIL CALENDAR

	E-1-A RESERVES POLICY
	Reserves Policy
	BC Reserves Policy 2023 (1)

	E-2-A FIRE AND BURNING BYLAW
	Fire and Burning Bylaw
	247-23 Burning & Fire Pit Bylaw

	F-1-A COMMITTEE REMUNERATION POLICY
	Committee Members Remuneration Policy
	Committee Members Remuneration Policy 2023

	F-1-B COMMUNITY PIER POLICY
	BC community pier agenda item
	community_pier_policy_2022
	1. Introduction:
	2. Goal:
	3. Definitions:
	4. Policy:
	2) Initial buy in:
	3) Spring Installation and Fall Removal
	4) Signage
	5) Annual Fee Collection
	6) Parking
	7) Storage
	8) Fueling
	9) Garbage
	10) Lake Access to Range Road 15
	11) Noise
	12) Alcohol or Cannabis
	13) Fires
	14) Violation


	F-2-A LUB AMENDMENTS
	Development - LUB Amendments
	Development - 248-23 LUB Amendments
	An amendment to the Land Use Bylaw 170/13:


	G-1,2,3 COUNCIL REPORTS
	Council Reports
	05.10.2023 - TOSLLB Regular Meeting Highlights
	PRL Board Meeting Minutes May 18, 2023 - draft
	May 18, 2023

	PRLB 051823
	PRLB 60123
	Young at Heart Trade Show 
	Library Managers Coffee Break
	Vistaprint Pro Shop
	LIBRARY NEWS
	West Coast Seeds Donation
	Minister's Awards for Excellence in Public Library Excellence for 2023

	TRAINING & EVENTS
	Upcoming Webinars
	Alberta Seniors Week: Free Canadian Revenue Agency (CRA) Webinar Sessions
	Monday, June 5 - Sunday, June 11

	LAA Speaker Series: Public Organizations in a Time of Upheaval
	Wednesday, June 1410:30am

	The Fight Against Book Bans: How Do We Move Forward? Webinar
	Wednesday, June 14
	12:00pm

	The Practice of Leadership: Nurturing Your Capacity to Lead Your Team, Your Organization, & Your Community Webinar
	Wednesday, June 14
	1:00pm



	PRLB ROI 2020
	SV of Birchcliff

	PRLS 2022 Audited Financial Statements
	PRLS Board Talk - May 18, 2023

	F-1-B COMMUNITY PIER POLICY.pdf
	BC community pier agenda item
	community_pier_policy_2022
	1. Introduction:
	2. Goal:
	3. Definitions:
	4. Policy:
	2) Initial buy in:
	3) Spring Installation and Fall Removal
	4) Signage
	5) Annual Fee Collection
	6) Parking
	7) Storage
	8) Fueling
	9) Garbage
	10) Lake Access to Range Road 15
	11) Noise
	12) Alcohol or Cannabis
	13) Fires
	14) Violation





